
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

MEETING MINUTES

March 6, 2006

PRESENT:

Mark Kaplan, Chair, Board of Selectmen
Douglas W. Lyon, Selectman
Ruth I. Clough, Selectman
Jessie Levine, Town Administrator

OTHERS PRESENT:

Cotton M. Cleveland, Town Moderator
Linda Hardy, Town Clerk/Tax Collector
Bob and DJ Lavoie, New London residents
Annette Vogel, Intertown Record

Chair Kaplan called the meeting to order at 3:05 PM.

Meeting Minutes: The Board of Selectmen approved the minutes of February 27, 2006 (Motion Lyon,
Second Clough, approved 3-0).

Meeting Schedule: The Board of Selectmen added the following meetings to their schedule:

Monday, March 20, 2006 at 8:00 AM
Monday, March 27, 2006 at 8:00 AM
Saturday, April 1 at 7:30 AM (Citizen’s Advisory Committee)
Monday, April 3 at 8:00 AM
Monday, April 10 at 8:00 AM
Monday, April 17 at 8:00 AM
Monday, April 24 at 8:00 AM

Town Meeting: Chair Kaplan welcomed Town Moderator Cotton Cleveland and Town Clerk Linda
Hardy to discuss Town Meeting preparation.  Ms. Cleveland opened the discussion on elections, which
will be held on Tuesday, March 14 from 8:00 AM – 7:00 PM at Whipple Memorial Town Hall.  The
Selectmen will follow their usual shifts at the polling place (Ms. Clough in the morning; Chair Kaplan at
mid-day, and Mr. Lyon in the evening).

Ms. Clough suggested bringing the wetlands map and steep slopes map to the Town Hall in the event that
people have questions about the zoning amendments.  This led to a discussion about whether the
Selectmen and election workers can answer questions about the zoning amendments.  Ms. Cleveland
cautioned against attempting to answer questions, which might be construed as giving advice, and instead
suggested that the Selectmen refer to the fact that the Planning Board held public hearings and provided
written rationales for the proposed amendments.  Ms. Levine suggested bringing copies of the ballot and
zoning changes to the Town Hall for the elections.

Ms. Cleveland said the new handicap booth with faxed voting will be in place for the September primary.
The booth contains a computer that takes the vote and faxes it back to the polling place.  She said that
Bud Fitch of the Attorney General’s Office had suggested having one in every ten or so people use the



Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
March 6, 2006
Page 2 of 4

handicap booth so as to keep the voting anonymous (i.e., if there were only one user of the booth, it
would be more difficult to keep the faxed results anonymous).

Ms. Hardy said her office had given out 150 absentee ballots so far (they had ordered 300), and they
ordered 1300 regular ballots.

Moving to the Town Meeting on Wednesday night, Ms. Cleveland asked Ms. Levine to prepare the Town
Meeting agenda as she has for the past few years.  Mr. Lyon asked the status of videotaping and airing
Town Meeting, and Ms. Levine said that Adelphia had agreed to install a live feed to KRMS at their own
cost, but she has not heard from them in a few weeks.  She will follow-up.

Ms. Hardy asked how to handle the ballot votes needed for the two bonds.  Ms. Cleveland said the articles
could be read and voted on separately, which would require some time because people would have to get
out of their seats; or perhaps they could be read back-to-back and voted on at the same time in two
separate ballot boxes.  Ms. Cleveland will make calls to find out if it is legal to follow the latter method,
which would take less time.  The group discussed the possible locations of ballot boxes.

The Selectmen then reviewed the warrant articles one-by-one.  Ms. Cleveland said she encourages the
combination of warrant articles because it could shorten the meeting while still allowing plenty of
opportunity for discussion or amendments to warrant articles.  She said the Town has an outstanding and
open budget process with an active Budget Committee, and people could attend the public meetings.  She
suggested that future warrants combine articles.  The Selectmen questioned why the articles had been
separated in the first place, and Ms. Hardy said it could have originated when Ilene Healy was Town
Administrator and Town Meeting was very short and the Selectmen wanted it to be longer; separating the
warrant articles was one way to create more discussion.  Ms. Cleveland said that this year the combined
capital reserve fund warrant articles will be a good test of the success of that idea.

Bob Lavoie asked how Ms. Cleveland handles multiple amendments.  Ms. Cleveland said she takes
amendments one at a time and will call for a vote on one amendment before taking other amendments.
She will not allow amendments on amendments because they get confusing.

The Selectmen discussed how to handle the warrant article seeking design funds for the intersection of
Newport & County Road.  Voters will not be asked to vote on the choice of design.  Ms. Clough
suggested a progress report that lets voters know what has happened to date and inviting them to the next
public forum on April 17.  The Selectmen discussed how to handle a motion to postpone to a future date
if more discussion is needed. Ms. Levine will investigate that procedure.

The Selectmen also discussed the warrant article on mosquito control and asked Ms. Levine to get a
breakdown of the cost of larviciding compared to monitoring and testing mosquito pools.  The Selectmen
then discussed the warrant article on increasing the veteran’s credit.  Ms. Cleveland said she would call
on DJ Lavoie to present the article.  Ms. Levine suggested that there be ballots ready incase a secret ballot
was called for.  The Selectmen discussed the process for a secret ballot vote, which requires five
signatures from registered voters.

Ms. Clough informed Ms. Cleveland that one of the discussions during the Budget Committee’s meetings
was whether to change to a July-June fiscal year so that Town Meeting would fall before any of the funds
had to be spent.  She asked Ms. Cleveland if she had an opinion on this subject, and Ms. Cleveland said
she did not.  She suggested that Ms. Levine poll other town managers, which Ms. Levine said she had
already done.  Ms. Cleveland suggested taking the idea to the Budget Committee, Citizen’s Advisory
Committee, and other such forums.

Intersection Update: Ms. Levine said she and Richard Lee had attended the State’s Transportation
Enhancement Advisory Committee’s hearing earlier that day to defend the application for a grant for the



Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
March 6, 2006
Page 3 of 4

Pleasant and Main Street intersection.  She said there were about $27 million in grant requests chasing
$5.8 million in available funds.  Mr. Lyon said he would like to ask the State to look at the layout of
Crockett’s Corner, which is the intersection of two state roads.  He suggested that a letter could be sent to
the state asking them to review that intersection at the same time that they consider repairs to Main Street.
Ms. Levine will draft a letter.

Transfer Station regulations: Ms. Levine said that she had talked with staff at the last staff meeting and
also with Chief Seastrand and Richard Lee about possible changes in the way Transfer Station passes are
given out.  She asked the Selectmen if they would revisit the draft changes from a few years ago, and the
Selectmen said they would and that it would be a good subject to bring before the Citizen’s Advisory
Committee.  Ms. Levine said that one issue is how many passes to give to businesses that work in town
but do not own property; some businesses have requested multiple stickers for their employees, which has
resulted in numerous cars from out-of-town having permission to use the Transfer Station.  This happened
recently with a real estate firm.  Mr. Lyon said taken to the extreme, that would mean that employees of
Hannaford would also get stickers for their cars, since they work for a New London business.  Ms. Levine
said one way to limit the number of cars is to give every business a temporary pass that could be
transferred between cars, which would discourage people from using the New London station for trash
generated out of town.

Ms. Levine said she had learned from Carol Fraley that the Town of Sandwich, Mass., requires out-of-
town property owners to pay $100 for stickers to use the Transfer Station.  Ms. Levine said that doesn’t
make sense because it’s requiring the people who use the Transfer Station the least – and who already pay
property taxes – to pay for the privilege of using it occasionally.  She said she did not advocate for people
having to pay for stickers, but to establish a more fool-proof system.

Committee Appointments & Reappointments: Ms. Levine told the Selectmen that it is the time of year to
consider committee and board appointments and reappointments.  She will put this on the agenda for later
in the month.  Mr. Lavoie asked Ms. Levine to make it clear to potential volunteers that positions might
not be open if the Selectmen reappoint existing committee members.  The Selectmen agreed to better
educate people on the process.

Planning Board update: Ms. Clough gave an update on the Planning Board meeting of February 28.  She
said the Planning Board had been talking with Town Planner Ken McWilliams about revising the Site
Plan Review Regulations and Subdivision Regulations.  The revised subdivision regulations should be
available for the Planning Board to review in a month or so, and the site plan regulations, which are being
revised more thoroughly, will take longer.  Both revisions will require approval by the Planning Board
after a public hearing.  Ms. Levine said Ken McWilliams has been working with department heads to get
input on changes needed for both documents.  Ms. Clough said the Planning Board also hopes to start
receiving public input on the Master Plan in mid-summer; the Board is trying to determine the best way to
get feedback, either by surveys or public meetings or both.  Finally, she said the Planning Board is
tracking the regional impact of the Harborview development in Sutton and following the minutes of the
Sutton Planning Board.  The subdivision has one access point via Stonehouse Road in New London, and
New London currently has abutter status.

Citizen’s Advisory Committee: Bob Lavoie said that at the last meeting of the CAC, the Selectmen asked
for way to receive input, and one CAC member had suggested having practical educational sessions, such
as on recycling and composting.  Mr. Lavoie suggested having the Conservation Commission put together
an educational session on recycling and landscaping; he has sample publications from Maine that he will
share with Ms. Levine.



Selectmen’s Meeting Minutes
March 6, 2006
Page 4 of 4

There being no further public business, Chair Kaplan moved to go into non-public session to discuss
litigation matters pursuant to RSA 91:A-3 II (e).  Upon returning from non-public session, the Selectmen
signed the items below.

Building Permits:

• Paul and Sidney Diekmann, 24 Sawyer Lane (Map 073, Lot 068), permit to replace old single crank-
out windows with standard size insulated glass window, this will include enlarging the opening 16
inches.  Replace small kitchen window with insulated window, this will include enlarging this
opening by 12 inches – Approved (Permit 06-010)

Sign Permit Applications:

• NONE

Other Items for Signature:

• Disbursement and Payroll Voucher for the week of March   , 2006 – Approved

• Application for the use of the Sydney L. Crook Conference Room by KARMA for Wednesday,
March 8, 2006 from 6 p.m. to 8 p.m. – Approved

• Application for the use of the Sydney L. Crook Conference Room by Adventures in Learning for
Thursday, March 16 from 12:00 noon to 1:30 P.M. and Thursday, April 6, 2006 from 9:30 A.M. to
11:00 A.M. - Approved

There being no further business, the Board of Selectmen adjourned the meeting at 6:10 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Jessie W. Levine
Town Administrator


